
 
 

Isabelle Oechslie 
Town Planner 

(207) 563-5168 
IOechslie@Damariscottame.com 

Town of Damariscotta 
21 School Street 
Damariscotta, ME 04543 

 
 
 

Town of Damariscotta 
Planning Board Meeting Agenda 

Monday, December 19, 2022 – 6:00PM 
Hybrid Meeting: Town Office & via Zoom 

 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88985249796 

Meeting ID: 889 8524 9796 
Passcode: DamaPB 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Call to Order 

 
3. Public Hearings: 

a. Site Plan and Conditional Use Applications to establish a registered marijuana 
caregiver retail store by renovating the existing building and adding a crushed stone 
parking area on site at 95 Biscay Road (Tax Map 1, Lot 67) 

▪ Applicant: Danielle & Charles Simmons (dba “Above & Beyond 
Cannabis”) 

▪ Zone: C-2 
 

b. Planning Board Remote Meeting Policy 
 

4. Review of Meeting Minutes: November 7, 2022 
 

5. Other Business: 
a. Questions from the public (an opportunity for the public to ask questions on items 

not on the agenda) 

b. Planner’s Report 
 

6. Adjournment 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88985249796


Table of Contents 

Item Page Number 
3. a. Public Hearing: Site Plan and Conditional Use Applications for Danielle and
Charles Simmons

• Staff Review Memo & Recommendation 3 
• DRAFT Findings of Fact 14 
• Application & Supporting Materials 24 

3. b. Public Hearing: Planning Board Remote Meeting Policy 44 

4. Review of Meeting Minutes: November 7, 2022 48 



 
 

Planning Department 
Damariscotta Town Office 
21 School Street, 
Damariscotta, ME 04543 

Isabelle Oechslie 
Town Planner 

Phone: (207) 563-5168 
IOechslie@damariscottame.com  

 

 
AGENDA ITEM #3A 

Meeting of December 19, 2022 

Site Plan & Conditional Use Applications – Above & Beyond Marijuana Caregiver Store 

95 Biscay Road – Danielle & Charles Simmons 
PID #2204 

INTRODUCTION 

Applicants Danielle and Charles Simmons (doing business as “Above & Beyond Cannabis”) are 
seeking Site Plan and Conditional Use approval in order to establish a registered marijuana caregiver 
retail store at 95 Biscay Road. The applicant plans to renovate the existing building and add a 
parking area on site. The parcel is further identified as Assessor’s Tax Map 1, Lot 67 and it is located 
within the C-2 Zoning District. 

 
 
Notices of the pending application were mailed on November 28, 2022 to 5 property owners 
abutting the subject property and were posted at the Town Office. No abutters objected to the 
application and therefore a public hearing is not required, per Sec. 102.5(G) of the Damariscotta 
Town Ordinances.  

mailto:IOechslie@damariscottame.com


 

Page 2 of 11 
 

This submission is being reviewed pursuant to Chapter 102, Section 102.6: Performance Standards 
[Site Plan Review]; Chapter 101, Section 101.9: Appeals & Conditional Uses; and for compliance 
with the Town’s adopted Comprehensive Plan.  

SUBMISSION CHRONOLOGY 

Application Received:   November 28, 2022 

Pre-Application Date:   N/A 

Deemed Complete for Planning Board:  December 5, 2022 

PROJECT DATA 

Zoning: C-2 
Land Area: 10.45 acres 
Existing Land Use: Multiple (building to be located is vacant, + a self-storage facility) 
Proposed Land Use: Registered Caregiver Retail Store (Medical Marijuana 

Establishment) 
 Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 40 feet N/A – unchanged  
Min. Front Yard: 20 feet (or the average of 

existing setbacks on abutting 
properties) 

N/A – unchanged 

Min. Side Yard: 15 feet N/A – unchanged  
Min. Rear Yard: 15 feet N/A – unchanged 
Min. Off-Street Parking*: 4/1,000 s.f. of floor area 6 parking spaces 

 
*Pursuant to 102.6(H)(7)(i). 

REVIEW PROCESS 

The applicants previously received Site Plan and Conditional Use approval for their existing 
business, located at 464 Main Street, on September 14, 2020. The applicants have indicated that, as 
their current building is being sold by its owner, they decided to seek alternate locations for their 
business. 

The licensing process for marijuana establishments in Damariscotta is two-fold. First, the applicants 
must ensure that they meet all applicable requirements of the Town’s Land Use and related “zoning” 
ordinances (including obtaining any Planning Board approvals). Then, the applicants are able to 
submit application for a Medical Marijuana Establishment License to the Town Clerk. Once the 
License application is deemed complete, the Selectboard will be required to hold a public hearing 
and make a determination thereon. Approval of the Planning Board does not require that the 
Selectboard approve the Medical Marijuana Establishment License and does not preclude the 
Selectboard from doing their own due diligence on the License application.  

https://www.damariscottame.com/sites/g/files/vyhlif4311/f/minutes/pb_9-14-20_minutes.pdf


 

Page 3 of 11 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

The 2014 Comprehensive Plan (adopted June 2014 and subsequently revised in February 2015) 
notes that the subject property is within the Outer Commercial Corridor Growth Area (per the 
Future Land Use Map, page 34 and below).  

 

Growth Areas are the areas where the Town expects growth and development to occur. The 
anticipation is that most residential and non-residential development will occur in these areas. The 
Outer Commercial Corridor Area anticipated that, “… The types of non-residential uses allowed in 
this area should include office, service, and community activities. Small-scale retail and restaurant 
uses should be permitted but should be required to meet design and performance standards.” 

As noted in the analysis of the project below, the project meets the required design and performance 
standards as outlined in Sec. 102.6 of the Site Plan Review Ordinance. Thus, the project is in 
compliance with the Comprehensive Plan vision for the area. 

ANALYSIS OF PROJECT 

Site Plan and Conditional Use applications are subject to the standards outlined in Chapter 102, 
Section 102.6: Performance Standards [Site Plan Review]; Chapter 101, Section 101.9: Appeals & 
Conditional Uses.  

Staff’s analysis of the Site Plan and Conditional Use standards are organized by topic below, with 
references to the corresponding provisions.  

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance the Landscape 
As the application is to renovate an existing building (the highlighted building on the 
provided site plan), impacts to the natural landscape as a result of this project will not occur. 
Existing bufferyards will be preserved in their natural states. 

 



 

Page 4 of 11 
 

2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 
As noted in the project data table above, changes to the space and bulk of the existing 
building are not proposed as part of this application. No new structures are proposed as part 
of this application. 

 
The parking area is designed for six cars and will be set back at least 50 feet from the front 
property line and at least 30 feet from the westerly property line. As designed, the project 
meets the requirements of Sec. 102.4(B)(2) and (B)(3). 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

In order to mitigate potential concerns of marijuana-related odors, the applicant has 
indicated that they plan to install a UVB ventilation and sterilization system within the 
building. This is also a requirement of the Medical Marijuana Establishment Licensing 
Ordinance. Dust, ash, and smoke are not anticipated as a result of this use. 
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
The applicant is proposing to install motion detecting exterior lighting, to be mounted on 
the building. The applicant has submitted information regarding the lighting which shows 
that it is 3000K LED lighting. 
 
Per Condition #9, all exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) fixtures and 
shall not be placed higher than 16 feet on the building. 
 
No rotating or flashing lights are proposed with this application. 

 
The applicant has adequately demonstrated to the Board that the proposed lighting is 
appropriate for the intended use, given the security requirements outlined in the Town’s 
Medical Marijuana Licensing Ordinance (Sec. 902.11), which requires motion detecting 
lighting. 
 
During nighttime hours, exterior lighting shall be turned down to the minimum level 
required for security. Condition #10 reaffirms this requirement. 
 
The project as designed and conditioned meets the standards of this section. 
 

5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 
All noise during construction and once in operation will be required to adhere to the 
provisions of this section, including staying below the sound level limitations as described. 
For a project abutting a residential use (as this one does, to the east), the sound level limits 
are 55 dBA between 7AM and 7PM, and 45 dBA between 7PM and 7AM. Condition #9 
reaffirms this requirement. 

  



 

Page 5 of 11 
 

 
6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 

Trips 

According to the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition, 
the proposed use will generate approximately 7 customer trips per day. 

The applicant has indicated that they have two full-time employees. One will work 9AM-
5PM and the other will work 11AM-7PM. There is also a part-time employee who will be 
on-site variable hours, for approximately 10 hours each week. Thus, in addition to the 
estimated customer trips, there will be approximately 6 additional trips to the site per day (3 
entering and 3 exiting). 

Access 

Existing access to the site is via Heater Road, where sight distances are adequate from the 
parking area. There is also site access from Biscay Road. During a review for the previous 
take-out restaurant business that existed on the site, the Police Chief at the time requested 
that primary access to the site be from Heater Road, rather than having traffic attempting to 
enter and exit on Biscay Road. Condition #11 reaffirms this requirement, and requires the 
applicant to communicate this with their patients both verbally and through signage. 

Given the minimal traffic generation anticipated by the proposed development and the lack 
of sidewalks in the vicinity of the subject parcel, staff does not recommend requiring the 
applicants to install a sidewalk. 

Given the level of traffic generation and the capacity and design of the roadways connected 
to the site, the project will not cause unreasonable public road congestion or unsafe 
conditions on private or public ways, consistent with the requirements of Section 102.6(F) 
and (G). 

Parking 

Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.6(H)(7)(i) requires that retail stores or service 
establishments provide four parking spaces per 1,000 s.f. of floor area, therefore the project 
requires 2 spaces (the floor area is approximately 384 s.f.). The project will provide for six 
parking spaces. As designed the parking supplied meets the requirements of Section 
102.6(H).   

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
Public water access is detailed in item 11 below. 
 
Sewage disposal is discussed in item 15 below. 
 
The applicants have indicated that they will take care of trash disposal themselves by 
bringing it to the transfer station. There are no known capacity constraints regarding solid 
waste, therefore the project is consistent with this section. 
 



 

Page 6 of 11 
 

The Police and Fire Departments are required to review this application for emergency 
access as part of the licensing requirements for medical marijuana establishments. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K). Storage of bulk fuel or chemicals is not proposed (outside of 
the normal storage of conventional heating fuel). Underground petroleum tanks are not 
proposed. Aquifers are not located within the vicinity of the project, according to publicly 
accessible data from the Maine Geological Survey.1 
 

9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 
The proposal includes adding a crushed stone, six-spot parking area and access drive to the 
property. The existing property has compacted soil in the areas where gravel will be added. 
Given the minimal area of impact and the significant buffering on the subject property, staff 
does not believe that a full stormwater management plan is required nor are these standards 
applicable. For the Board’s knowledge, the DEP only regulates projects where 1 acre or 
more is disturbed and where 20,000 s.f. of impervious area is proposed. 
 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
As the project does not include any new construction or excavation, an erosion and 
sedimentation control plan is not required. 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
The applicant is proposing to tie into the existing public water available on the site. They 
have received oral confirmation from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary District that there is 
adequate public water capacity to serve the proposed use. Condition #12 requires that a 
written capacity to serve letter from the Sanitary District be submitted to the Town Planner 
prior to the issuance of a building permit, for the Town’s records. 
 

12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 
The area around the building where the proposed parking area will go has been cleared 
previously. However, on the eastern side of the property, a fairly significant wooded buffer 
exists (see Google Earth image from 2022 under Item 17: Buffer Areas, below). Condition 
#13 requires that the applicant install fencing around the dripline edge of all trees designated 
to be protected. 
 
Wetlands will not be impacted by the proposed development. 
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
No documented archeological or historic resources will be impacted as a result of this 
project. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 
 

 
1 https://www.maine.gov/dacf/mgs/pubs/digital/aquifers.htm 



 

Page 7 of 11 
 

15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 
The existing septic system on site was designed to accommodate 230 gallons per day (GPD). 
A copy of the design has been submitted with the application and was previously reviewed 
by the Plumbing Inspector when it was approved in 2006. The soils for the site have been 
found to be sufficient to accommodate the proposed septic system. According to the State 
of Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules, the estimated GPD generated by this 
project would be 12 GPD per employee (or approximately 36 GPD). Therefore, the project 
meets the requirements for adequate sewage waste disposal.  
 
It should be noted that the applicant is proposing to utilize a port-a-potty as an employee 
restroom for the time being, until they can construct a permanent bathroom within the 
building. Condition #14 requires a bathroom to be constructed within 12 months of the 
issuance of an approval. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond; therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 
A fairly significant buffer (>200 feet) exists between the existing structure and the adjacent 
residential parcel. As shown in the photo below, from Google Earth imagery updated 
through 2022, this buffer is fairly wooded. The applicants are not proposing to clear any of 
the existing buffer as part of the project. 

 
 



 

Page 8 of 11 
 

18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 
Future signage will be regulated in accordance with the Damariscotta Sign Ordinance. 

 
19. Sec. 102.6(V): Building Appearance 

The applicant is planning to locate in an existing building and renovate the interior. The 
existing building has a gabled roof and clapboard siding. The applicants have indicated that 
they also plan to remove (and possibly replace) an existing deck, replace the existing 
windows, and replace the door with a more secure one. They have also indicated that they 
plan to paint the interior of the building (and possibly the exterior as time and money 
allows). Condition #15 reaffirms the requirements of Sec. 102.6(V) to ensure that future 
renovations meet the standards of this section. 

 
Conditional Use Standards 

1. Sec. 101.9(C)(2)(a): Conditional Uses 
The proposed use will meet the requirements of the Town’s Site Plan Review Ordinance, as 
described in the analyses above. The Town’s Land Use Ordinance provides a limit on the 
location of medical marijuana establishments, defined as “a registered caregiver retail store, 
registered dispensary, medical marijuana testing facility, or medical marijuana manufacturing 
facility,” in Sec. 101.6(T). In accordance with this section, “A medical marijuana 
establishment may not be permitted or operated within 1,000 feet of a public or private 
educational facility including but not limited to child care facility, nursery schools, 
preschools, kindergartens, elementary schools, private schools, intermediate schools, junior 
high schools, middle schools, high schools, vocational schools, secondary schools, 
continuation schools, special education schools, junior colleges, and universities; school 
includes the school ground, but does not include the facilities used primarily for another 
purpose and only incidentally as a school.” The proposed project is located approximately 
1,060’ from a known pre-school’s parking lot, as demonstrated by the map below. 



 

Page 9 of 11 
 

 
 
The potential effect of the use on the environment (from air, water or soil pollution), noise, 
traffic, congestion, soil erosion, the burden on the public sewer and water systems as well as 
other municipal services have been taken into consideration and have been analyzed in the 
requirements above. As noted, the proposed use will not have an adverse effect on the 
health, safety, or general welfare of the public.    

WAIVERS 

The applicant has not requested any waivers as part of this project. 

  



 

Page 10 of 11 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the review of the project and all information in the record, staff recommends the 
following action: 

Approve the Site Plan and Conditional Use application of Danielle and Charles Simmons, dated 
through November 28, 2022; for Above & Beyond Cannabis, at 95 Biscay Road, subject to the 
following conditions:  

Conditions of Approval 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals and 
plans contained in the application and supporting documents 
submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any variation from 
the plans, proposals and supporting documents are subject to the 
review and approval of the Planning Board prior to 
implementation. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

2.  All adopted conditions of approval and any waivers granted shall 
appear on the face of the plans submitted for building permits, 
and the face of the subdivision plan, if applicable. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

3.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall pay 
all outstanding review escrow account fees. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

4.  This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the 
date of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code Officer Ongoing 

5.  Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall submit 
two hard-copy plans at 24” x 36” size to the Town Planner with 
all conditions and waivers listed on the plans. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

6.  The applicant shall secure a Building Permit and all applicable 
local licenses from the Code Enforcement Officer in coordination 
with the Town Planner, Fire Department, and all relevant review 
authorities, prior to commencing any construction activities. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

7.  Only the topsoil directly impacted by proposed buildings, access 
ways, and parking areas may be removed from the site without 
returning to the Planning Board for further review. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

8.  All exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) fixtures 
in accordance with Section 102.6(D). 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

9.  All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code Officer Ongoing 



 

Page 11 of 11 
 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

10.  Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicants 
will be required to submit a plan to turn down lighting to the 
minimum extent practical for security purposes at night. This will 
need to be reviewed to the satisfaction of the Code Enforcement 
Officer, Town Planner, and Police Chief. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

11.  Primary access to the site shall be from Heater Road in order to 
minimize entering and exiting onto Biscay Road, per the 
recommendation of the prior Police Chief. The applicant is 
required to communicate this with patients through signage and 
verbally. 

Code 
Enforcement 
Officer / 
Police Chief 

Ongoing 

12.  A written capacity to serve letter from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary 
District related to the provision of public water is required be 
submitted to the Town Planner for the Town’s records prior to 
the issuance of a building permit. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

13.  Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall establish 
fencing at the drip line of all trees that are designated for 
preservation in the approved Site Plan. No construction staging 
or other construction-related activity is permitted within the drip 
line fence barrier. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 

14.  The applicant is proposing to utilize a port-a-potty as an employee 
restroom for the time being, until they can construct a bathroom 
within the building. A bathroom is required to be constructed 
within the existing building footprint within 12 months of the 
issuance of an approval, or the applicant is required to return to 
the Planning Board to offer an alternative solution for the 
handling of sewage. 

Town 
Planner / 
Code 
Enforcement 
Officer 

Ongoing (within 
12 months of 
approval date) 

15.  Exterior renovations are required to meet the standards of Site 
Plan Review Ordinance: Sec. 102.6(V), including but not limited 
to standards related to windows and building façade colors. 
Changes to the approved plan that would be in violation of this 
section are not allowed. 

Town 
Planner / 
Code 
Enforcement 
Officer 

Ongoing 

 
Isabelle V. Oechslie 
Town Planner 
December 19, 2022 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment [1]  Applicant Response to Comments, dated December 5, 2022 
Attachment [2]  Site Plan for Map 1, Lot 67 



DAMARISCOTTA PLANNING BOARD 
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Date: December 19, 2022 

 

 

Site Plan and Conditional Use Applications – Above & Beyond Marijuana Caregiver Store 

95 Biscay Road – Danielle & Charles Simmons 

PID #2204 

The Town of Damariscotta Planning Board issues the following Findings of Fact and Conclusions 
of Law at its duly-noticed meeting of December 19, 2022: 

A. The Planning Board considered the Project, the staff report, and received and considered all 
written and oral public comments on the Project which were submitted up to and at the time 
of the meeting for the Project; and 

B. Notices of the pending application were mailed on November 28, 2022 to 5 property owners 
abutting the subject property and were posted at the Town Office. No abutters objected to the 
application and therefore a public hearing is not required, per Sec. 102.5(G) of the 
Damariscotta Town Ordinance; and  

C. The project description is as follows:  

Applicants Danielle and Charles Simmons (doing business as “Above & Beyond Cannabis”) 
are seeking Site Plan and Conditional Use approval in order to establish a registered 
marijuana caregiver retail store at 95 Biscay Road. The applicant plans to renovate the 
existing building and add a parking area on site. The parcel is further identified as Assessor’s 
Tax Map 1, Lot 67 and it is located within the C-2 Zoning District; and  

D. The Project is subject to the following policies and standards of review:  

a. Chapter 102, Section 102.6: Performance Standards [Site Plan Review]; 
b. Chapter 101, Section 101.9: Appeals & Conditional Uses 

  



Page 2 

 

E. The core Project Data includes:  

Zoning: C-2 
Land Area: 10.45 acres 
Existing Land Use: Multiple (building to be located is vacant, + a self-storage 

facility) 
Proposed Land Use: Registered Caregiver Retail Store (Medical Marijuana 

Establishment) 
 Allowed: Proposed: 
Max. Building Height: 40 feet N/A – unchanged  
Min. Front Yard: 20 feet (or the average of 

existing setbacks on 
abutting properties) 

N/A – unchanged 

Min. Side Yard: 15 feet N/A – unchanged  
Min. Rear Yard: 15 feet N/A – unchanged 
Min. Off-Street Parking*: 4/1,000 s.f. of floor area 6 parking spaces 

F. Based on its review of the entire record herein, the Planning Board has determined that the 
Project meets the applicable policies and standards of review, and the Planning Board makes 
the following findings: 

1. Sec. 102.6(A): Preserve and Enhance the Landscape 
As the application is to renovate an existing building (the highlighted building on the 
provided site plan), impacts to the natural landscape as a result of this project will not 
occur. Existing bufferyards will be preserved in their natural states. 

 
2. Sec. 102.6(B): Relationship to Environment and Neighboring Buildings 

As noted in the project data table above, changes to the space and bulk of the existing 
building are not proposed as part of this application. No new structures are proposed as 
part of this application. 

 
The parking area is designed for six cars and will be set back at least 50 feet from the 
front property line and at least 30 feet from the westerly property line. As designed, the 
project meets the requirements of Sec. 102.4(B)(2) and (B)(3). 

 
3. Sec. 102.6(C): Air Quality 

In order to mitigate potential concerns of marijuana-related odors, the applicant has 
indicated that they plan to install a UVB ventilation and sterilization system within the 
building. This is also a requirement of the Medical Marijuana Establishment Licensing 
Ordinance. Dust, ash, and smoke are not anticipated as a result of this use. 
 

4. Sec. 102.6(D): Lighting and Glare 
The applicant is proposing to install motion detecting exterior lighting, to be mounted on 
the building. The applicant has submitted information regarding the lighting which shows 
that it is 3000K LED lighting. 
 
Per Condition #9, all exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) fixtures and 
shall not be placed higher than 16 feet on the building. 
 



Page 3 

 

No rotating or flashing lights are proposed with this application. 
 

The applicant has adequately demonstrated to the Board that the proposed lighting is 
appropriate for the intended use, given the security requirements outlined in the Town’s 
Medical Marijuana Licensing Ordinance (Sec. 902.11), which requires motion detecting 
lighting. 
 
During nighttime hours, exterior lighting shall be turned down to the minimum level 
required for security. Condition #10 reaffirms this requirement. 
 
The project as designed and conditioned meets the standards of this section. 
 

5. Sec. 102.6(E): Noise 
All noise during construction and once in operation will be required to adhere to the 
provisions of this section, including staying below the sound level limitations as 
described. For a project abutting a residential use (as this one does, to the east), the 
sound level limits are 55 dBA between 7AM and 7PM, and 45 dBA between 7PM and 
7AM. Condition #9 reaffirms this requirement. 
 

6. Sec. 102.6(F), (G), (H), and (I): Traffic, Circulation, and Access 
Trips 

According to the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition, 
the proposed use will generate approximately 7 customer trips per day. 

The applicant has indicated that they have two full-time employees. One will work 9AM-
5PM and the other will work 11AM-7PM. There is also a part-time employee who will be 
on-site variable hours, for approximately 10 hours each week. Thus, in addition to the 
estimated customer trips, there will be approximately 6 additional trips to the site per day 
(3 entering and 3 exiting). 

Access 

Existing access to the site is via Heater Road, where sight distances are adequate from 
the parking area. There is also site access from Biscay Road. During a review for the 
previous take-out restaurant business that existed on the site, the Police Chief at the 
time requested that primary access to the site be from Heater Road, rather than having 
traffic attempting to enter and exit on Biscay Road. Condition #11 reaffirms this 
requirement, and requires the applicant to communicate this with their patients both 
verbally and through signage. 

Given the minimal traffic generation anticipated by the proposed development and the 
lack of sidewalks in the vicinity of the subject parcel, the Planning Board is not requiring 
the applicants to install a sidewalk. 

Given the level of traffic generation and the capacity and design of the roadways 
connected to the site, the project will not cause unreasonable public road congestion or 
unsafe conditions on private or public ways, consistent with the requirements of Section 
102.6(F) and (G). 



Page 4 

 

Parking 

Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.6(H)(7)(i) requires that retail stores or service 
establishments provide four parking spaces per 1,000 s.f. of floor area, therefore the 
project requires 2 spaces (the floor area is approximately 384 s.f.). The project will 
provide for six parking spaces. As designed the parking supplied meets the 
requirements of Section 102.6(H).   

7. Sec. 102.6(J): Existing Public Utilities and Services 
Public water access is detailed in item 11 below. 
 
Sewage disposal is discussed in item 15 below. 
 
The applicants have indicated that they will take care of trash disposal themselves by 
bringing it to the transfer station. There are no known capacity constraints regarding 
solid waste, therefore the project is consistent with this section. 
 
The Police and Fire Departments are required to review this application for emergency 
access as part of the licensing requirements for medical marijuana establishments. 
 

8. Sec. 102.6(K): Water Quality 
The proposed project will not adversely affect the quality or quantity of groundwater, 
consistent with Sec. 102.6(K). Storage of bulk fuel or chemicals is not proposed (outside 
of the normal storage of conventional heating fuel). Underground petroleum tanks are 
not proposed. Aquifers are not located within the vicinity of the project, according to 
publicly accessible data from the Maine Geological Survey.1 
 

9. Sec. 102.6(L): Stormwater Management 
The proposal includes adding a crushed stone, six-spot parking area and access drive to 
the property. The existing property has compacted soil in the areas where gravel will be 
added. Given the minimal area of impact and the significant buffering on the subject 
property, the Planning Board found that a full stormwater management plan is not 
required nor are these standards applicable. 
 

10. Sec. 102.6(M): Erosion & Sediment Control 
As the project does not include any new construction or excavation, an erosion and 
sedimentation control plan is not required. 
 

11. Sec. 102.6(N): Water Supply 
The applicant is proposing to tie into the existing public water available on the site. They 
have received oral confirmation from the Great Salt Bay Sanitary District that there is 
adequate public water capacity to serve the proposed use. Condition #12 requires that a 
written capacity to serve letter from the Sanitary District be submitted to the Town 
Planner prior to the issuance of a building permit, for the Town’s records. 
 

12. Sec. 102.6(O): Natural Beauty 

 
1 https://www.maine.gov/dacf/mgs/pubs/digital/aquifers.htm 



Page 5 

 

The area around the building where the proposed parking area will go has been cleared 
previously. However, on the eastern side of the property, a fairly significant wooded 
buffer exists (see Google Earth image from 2022 under Item 17: Buffer Areas, below). 
Condition #13 requires that the applicant install fencing around the dripline edge of all 
trees designated to be protected. 
 
Wetlands will not be impacted by the proposed development. 
 

13. Sec. 102.6(P): Historic and Archeological Resources 
No documented archeological or historic resources will be impacted as a result of this 
project. 
 

14. Sec. 102.6(Q): Filling and Excavation 
All excavation will be incidental to the proposed development and are not part of an 
excavation or filling operation. Thus, this standard is not applicable to this project. 
 

15. Sec. 102.6(R): Sewage Disposal 
The existing septic system on site was designed to accommodate 230 gallons per day 
(GPD). A copy of the design has been submitted with the application and was previously 
reviewed by the Plumbing Inspector when it was approved in 2006. The soils for the site 
have been found to be sufficient to accommodate the proposed septic system. 
According to the State of Maine Subsurface Wastewater Disposal Rules, the estimated 
GPD generated by this project would be 12 GPD per employee (or approximately 36 
GPD). Therefore, the project meets the requirements for adequate sewage waste 
disposal.  
 
It should be noted that the applicant is proposing to utilize a port-a-potty as an employee 
restroom for the time being, until they can construct a permanent bathroom within the 
building. Condition #14 requires a bathroom to be constructed within 12 months of the 
issuance of an approval. 
 

16. Sec. 102.6(S): Phosphorus Control 
The subject property is not located within the watershed of a great pond; therefore, this 
standard is not applicable. 
 

17. Sec. 102.6(T): Buffer Areas 
A fairly significant buffer (>200 feet) exists between the existing structure and the 
adjacent residential parcel. As shown in the photo below, from Google Earth imagery 
updated through 2022, this buffer is fairly wooded. The applicants are not proposing to 
clear any of the existing buffer as part of the project. 



Page 6 

 

 
 
18. Sec. 102.6(U): Signs 

Future signage will be regulated in accordance with the Damariscotta Sign Ordinance. 
 
19. Sec. 102.6(V): Building Appearance 

The applicant is planning to locate in an existing building and renovate the interior. The 
existing building has a gabled roof and clapboard siding. The applicants have indicated 
that they also plan to remove (and possibly replace) an existing deck, replace the 
existing windows, and replace the door with a more secure one. They have also 
indicated that they plan to paint the interior of the building (and possibly the exterior as 
time and money allows). Condition #15 reaffirms the requirements of Sec. 102.6(V) to 
ensure that future renovations meet the standards of this section. 

 
Conditional Use Standards 

1. Sec. 101.9(C)(2)(a): Conditional Uses 
The proposed use will meet the requirements of the Town’s Site Plan Review Ordinance, 
as described in the analyses above. The Town’s Land Use Ordinance provides a limit on 
the location of medical marijuana establishments, defined as “a registered caregiver 
retail store, registered dispensary, medical marijuana testing facility, or medical 
marijuana manufacturing facility,” in Sec. 101.6(T). In accordance with this section, “A 
medical marijuana establishment may not be permitted or operated within 1,000 feet of a 
public or private educational facility including but not limited to child care facility, nursery 
schools, preschools, kindergartens, elementary schools, private schools, intermediate 
schools, junior high schools, middle schools, high schools, vocational schools, 



Page 7 

 

secondary schools, continuation schools, special education schools, junior colleges, and 
universities; school includes the school ground, but does not include the facilities used 
primarily for another purpose and only incidentally as a school.” The proposed project is 
located approximately 1,060’ from a known pre-school’s parking lot, as demonstrated by 
the map below. 
 

 
 
The potential effect of the use on the environment (from air, water or soil pollution), 
noise, traffic, congestion, soil erosion, the burden on the public sewer and water systems 
as well as other municipal services have been taken into consideration and have been 
analyzed in the requirements above. As noted, the proposed use will not have an 
adverse effect on the health, safety, or general welfare of the public. 

G. The applicant has not requested any waivers of the subdivision review standards. 

  



Page 8 

 

DECISION: 

H. Based on its review of the entire record herein, including the December 19, 2022 Planning 
Board staff report; all supporting, referenced, and incorporated documents; and all comments 
received; the Site Plan and Conditional Use application of Danielle and Charles Simmons, 
dated through November 28, 2022, for Above & Beyond Cannabis at 95 Biscay Road; is 
hereby 

 

 YAE NAE Absent/Abstain 

DENIED    

APPROVED WITH THE CONDITIONS BELOW     

CONDITIONS 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

1.  This approval is dependent upon and limited to the proposals 
and plans contained in the application and supporting 
documents submitted and affirmed to by the applicant.  Any 
variation from the plans, proposals and supporting documents 
are subject to the review and approval of the Planning Board 
prior to implementation. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

2.  All adopted conditions of approval and any waivers granted 
shall appear on the face of the plans submitted for building 
permits, and the face of the subdivision plan, if applicable. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

3.  Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall 
pay all outstanding review escrow account fees. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit  

4.  This Planning Board approval is valid for 12 months from the 
date of approval and shall expire if work has not substantially 
commenced within that time period.  

Code Officer Ongoing 

5.  Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall submit 
two hard-copy plans at 24” x 36” size to the Town Planner with 
all conditions and waivers listed on the plans. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 



Page 9 

 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

6.  The applicant shall secure a Building Permit and all applicable 
local licenses from the Code Enforcement Officer in 
coordination with the Town Planner, Fire Department, and all 
relevant review authorities, prior to commencing any 
construction activities. 

Code Officer Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

7.  Only the topsoil directly impacted by proposed buildings, 
access ways, and parking areas may be removed from the site 
without returning to the Planning Board for further review. 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

8.  All exterior lighting fixtures shall be full cut-off (shielded) 
fixtures in accordance with Section 102.6(D). 

Town 
Planner 

Ongoing 

9.  All noise associated with the proposed development shall be 
regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sec. 102.6. 
Applicants and their contractors are well-advised to familiarize 
themselves with that section of the Town’s Ordinances. 

Code Officer Ongoing 

10.  Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the 
applicants will be required to submit a plan to turn down 
lighting to the minimum extent practical for security purposes at 
night. This will need to be reviewed to the satisfaction of the 
Code Enforcement Officer, Town Planner, and Police Chief. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Certificate of 
Occupancy 

11.  Primary access to the site shall be from Heater Road in order 
to minimize entering and exiting onto Biscay Road, per the 
recommendation of the prior Police Chief. The applicant is 
required to communicate this with patients through signage 
and verbally. 

Code 
Enforcement 
Officer / 
Police Chief 

Ongoing 

12.  A written capacity to serve letter from the Great Salt Bay 
Sanitary District related to the provision of public water is 
required be submitted to the Town Planner for the Town’s 
records prior to the issuance of a building permit. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to Issuing 
Building Permit 

13.  Prior to submitting a building permit, the applicant shall 
establish fencing at the drip line of all trees that are designated 
for preservation in the approved Site Plan. No construction 
staging or other construction-related activity is permitted within 
the drip line fence barrier. 

Town 
Planner 

Prior to 
Submitting a 
Building Permit 



Page 10 

 

 Condition Staff 
Assigned 

Must be 
Completed By:   

14.  The applicant is proposing to utilize a port-a-potty as an 
employee restroom for the time being, until they can construct 
a bathroom within the building. A bathroom is required to be 
constructed within the existing building footprint within 12 
months of the issuance of an approval, or the applicant is 
required to return to the Planning Board to offer an alternative 
solution for the handling of sewage. 

Town 
Planner / 
Code 
Enforcement 
Officer 

Ongoing (within 
12 months of 
approval date) 

15.  Exterior renovations are required to meet the standards of Site 
Plan Review Ordinance: Sec. 102.6(V), including but not 
limited to standards related to windows and building façade 
colors. Changes to the approved plan that would be in violation 
of this section are not allowed. 

Town 
Planner / 
Code 
Enforcement 
Officer 

Ongoing 

 

Planning Board Signatures: 

 

__________________________________________ 
 

 
__________________________________________ 

 
 

__________________________________________ 
 

 
__________________________________________ 

 
 

__________________________________________ 



















12/12/22, 4:01 PM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Re: Security

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1751403562445953002%7Cmsg-f%3A1751470201203… 1/4

Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Re: Security
1 message

Danielle Simmons <aboveandbeyondcannabisllc@gmail.com> Tue, Dec 6, 2022 at 8:08 AM
To: Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Sounds good, here are the lights I ordered for outside! 



12/12/22, 4:01 PM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Re: Security

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1751403562445953002%7Cmsg-f%3A1751470201203… 2/4















12/5/22, 4:08 PM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Re: A couple of outstanding questions

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar2441817441408934577%7Cmsg-f%3A175139819832… 1/2

Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Re: A couple of outstanding questions 
1 message

Danielle Simmons <aboveandbeyondcannabisllc@gmail.com> Mon, Dec 5, 2022 at 1:04 PM
To: Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com>

Hi Isabelle!

I will take the trash to the transfer station myself.

We will have two full time employees and I will be there roughly 10 hours a week. We have one come in and work 9-5 and
one come in that works 11-7.

I haven't purchased these lights yet. Can you please send me - Sec. 102.6(D) in the Site Plan Review Ordinance or a
example of the motion lighting that would be acceptable as they didn't ask us to prove any kind of lighting last time. 

There is a existing wrap around driveway right now. We are planning on filling in a area right to the house as you pull into
the driveway from heater rd for employee parking. On the left will be a parking lot for patients. I can come in and explain
or draw on the map if you would like.

Yes we plan to use public water. I called and he said there is plenty of water there.

Hopefully this clears things up!
Thank you,
Danielle 

On Mon, Dec 5, 2022 at 12:40 PM Isabelle Oechslie <ioechslie@damariscottame.com> wrote: 
Hi Danielle,
As I'm writing my memo to the Planning Board, I have a couple of outstanding questions.
 
1. Will you utilize a dumpster and a private company to remove trash generated on site or is your plan to bring it to the
transfer station yourself? It is a bit unclear from your cover letter.
 
2. How many employees do you have and how many are on each shift? This would be helpful to understand the traffic
to be generated and we also need to know this to see if the existing septic design can handle the number of employees
that you have.
 
3. You noted in your application that you will be installing motion detector lighting outside the entire building. We need
to have a better understanding of the specs of these lights (color temperature, height, where they will be placed). Sec.
102.6(D) in the Site Plan Review Ordinance has a variety of requirements that must be met. Do you have lights picked
out that you could send to me?
 
4. You discuss building a parking lot in your cover letter. We need to understand where this will be on the site (it isn't
shown on the plan that you submitted). This might be something that we should discuss if you'd like to come by the
office.
 
5. Are you planning to use public water or is there a well on the property? If public water, have you reached out to the
Great Salt Bay Sanitary District?
 
Thank you - feel free to just respond to this email with answers to these questions and I will include it in the packet for
the Planning Board to review.
 

Isabelle Oechslie

Town Planner

Town of Damariscotta

mailto:ioechslie@damariscottame.com


12/5/22, 4:08 PM Town of Damariscotta Maine Mail - Re: A couple of outstanding questions

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=74abc5d206&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar2441817441408934577%7Cmsg-f%3A175139819832… 2/2

Office: (207) 563-5168

*Now available: Subscribe to be notified when Planning Board agendas are posted!*

https://www.damariscottame.com/subscribe


 



 



 

Town of Damariscotta 
Remote and Hybrid Meeting Policy 

 
 
Section 1. Purpose. 

 
This Policy is adopted pursuant to 1 M.R.S. § 403-B, as may be amended, in order to provide 

a written policy to govern the use of remote means for public meetings by the Town of 
Damariscotta. The conduct of remote and hybrid meetings by the Planning Board and remote 
participation in Planning Board meetings shall be governed by this Policy. 

 
 
Section 2. Definitions. 

 
Hybrid meeting means a public proceeding, as defined in 1 M.R.S. § 402(2), as may be 
amended, conducted with some meeting attendees in person/face-to-face at a designated 
physical location while connecting with other meeting attendees by remote means. 

 
Planning Board  or Board means the duly appointed members of the Town of Damariscotta 
Planning Board under the Town Charter, Section 4.04(B)(1). 
 
Public meeting means a “public proceeding,” as that term is defined in 1 M.R.S. § 402(2), as 
may be amended. 

 
Remote means means “remote methods” as defined in 1 M.R.S. § 403-B(1), as may be 
amended, and includes any form of audio and visual conference technology, or audio 
conference technology, including teleconference, videoconference, and voice over internet 
protocol, that facilitates interaction between the public and board members. Remote means 
does not include text-only means such as e-mail, text messages, or chat functions. 

 
Remote meeting means a public proceeding, as defined in 1 M.R.S. § 402(2), conducted 
solely by remote means. 

 
 
Section 3. Use of Remote Means for Public Meetings. 

 
(a) Types of Meetings and Participation Allowed 

 
(1) Remote Meetings of the Planning Board: The Planning Board shall conduct its 

meetings in person unless the Chair (or a majority of members of the Planning Board), 
in consultation with the Town Planner, makes a determination that an emergency or 
urgent issue exists that requires the Planning Board to conduct a remote meeting, 
including, but not limited to, inclement weather and/or disasters or catastrophes caused 
by either natural or man-made causes. The determination of such an emergency or 
urgent issue shall be made as soon as practicable, and notice of a meeting being 
conducted solely by remote means shall be disseminated consistent with 1 M.R.S. § 



 

406, as may be amended, and this Policy. 
 

(2) Hybrid Meetings with Remote Participation by Individual Board Members: 
Except for a remote meeting being conducted consistent with Section 3(a)(1) of this 
Policy, Planning Board members are expected to be physically present for all public 
meetings except when being physically present is not practicable for one or more 
members. Circumstances under which physical presence for one or more members is 
not practicable are limited to: 

 
i. Illness or other physical condition, or temporary absence from the 

Town of Damariscotta, that causes the Board member to face 
significant difficulties travelling to and attending the public meeting 
in person; or 

 
ii. To provide a reasonable accommodation to Board member(s) with a 

disability. 
 

A Board member who believes it is not practicable, as set forth above, for him/her/they 
to attend a meeting in person shall notify the Chair (or in his/her/their absence, the 
Town Planner) of the existence of such circumstances as far in advance as is possible. 
If the agenda has already been posted at the time the notice is made, an amended 
meeting agenda containing the information set forth in Section 3(b) of this Policy shall 
be posted on the Town’s website and be distributed to all members, relevant Town 
staff, and local representatives of the media by the same or faster means used to notify 
Board members at least four (4) hours prior to the originally noticed meeting start time. 

 
(3) Hybrid Meetings with No Remote Participation by Individual Board members: 

The Planning Board is not required by law to offer this type of meeting format but 
will endeavor to conduct a hybrid meeting, even when there is no remote participation 
by individual Board members, as often as practicable when the Planning Board meets 
in-person at the Town Hall meeting room. 



 

(b) Notice. Notice of a remote meeting or hybrid meeting must be provided in accordance 
with 1 M.R.S. § 406 and applicable Town ordinances, policies and practices and shall 
inform members of the public the means in which to contemporaneously: 

a. Remotely view the video and audio of the meeting through internet streaming or 
other means; 

b. Provide remote oral testimony in a manner that allows Board members and other 
meeting participants to hear the testimony, whether through an internet link, a 
telephone conference, or other means; 

c. Obtain copies of packet materials; and 
d. If a hybrid meeting, list the specific location of the public meeting site at 

which members of the public may attend in person and where at least some 
of the Board members will be present in person. 

 
(c)  Remote Meeting and Hybrid Meeting Requirements. Any remote meeting or hybrid 

meeting must comply with the following: 
a. The remote means used by the Planning Board must allow all members of the 

public participating in the meeting to hear, or see and hear, all Board members and 
any other speaker; 

b. Each member of the Planning Board who is participating in the meeting must be 
able to hear and speak to all other Board members and must be heard by the 
members of the public attending and observing the meeting during the meeting; 

c. Except as provided in subsection (6) or Section 3(d) or (e), a quorum of Board 
members shall be visible and audible to other members and to the public during 
the meeting; provided that so long as a quorum of Board members is visible, no 
other meeting participants shall be required to be visible during the meeting; 

d. Any Board member participating in a meeting by remote means shall be 
considered present at the meeting for the purpose of determining compliance 
with the quorum and voting requirements of the Planning Board; 

e. At the start of the meeting, the Chair shall announce the names of any Board 
members participating by remote means and state the reason therefor, which 
reason must be consistent with Section 3(a)(2) of this Policy; 

f. For audio-only teleconferencing, each speaker should repeat his/her/their name 
before making remarks; 

g. All Board members shall refrain from electronic communications regarding 
subjects considered at the meeting during the meeting, except that members 
may receive electronic copies of materials otherwise made available at the 
meeting; 

h. There should be a means for the Chair or the remote means facilitator to be able to 
unmute and identify each speaker, to organize and summarize chat/Q&A messages 
from the public, and/or to read public comment into the record at the appropriate 
time during the meeting; 

i. All votes during the meeting shall be conducted by roll call (with each 
member present stating “yes” or “no” as each name is called) so that it is clear 
how each member voted; 

j. All hybrid meetings shall be conducted in the Town Office meeting room unless 
an alternative location is authorized by the Town Clerk or his/her/their designee; 
and 



 

k. All remote and hybrid meetings shall be recorded by audio or video 
recording technology, and the Planning Board shall make the recording of 
the meeting electronically available to the Town staff liaison and for public 
access as soon as practicable after the meeting. 

 
(d) Disruptions and adjournment. If during the conduct of a remote or hybrid meeting, the 

meeting is interrupted through disruptions or glitches in the technology, the meeting shall 
be automatically recessed for up to 15 minutes to restore communication when audio-visual 
communication cannot be maintained with a quorum of members. If the interruption 
cannot be resolved within 15 minutes, and the Planning Board has not provided reasonable 
notice to the public as to how the meeting will be continued at an alternative date and time, 
then the meeting shall be automatically adjourned. If the meeting being conducted is a 
hybrid meeting with no remote participation by individual Board members and a remote 
connection to the public location identified in the Planning Board’s notice pursuant to 
Section 3(b)(4) of this Policy is interrupted or lost, the meeting shall continue at the public 
location without the need for a recess or adjournment. 

 
(e) Executive sessions. To preserve the executive session privilege of any portion of a meeting 

closed to the public, the Chair or his/her/their designee should confirm with each attendee 
that no unauthorized person is present or has access to any executive session being 
conducted via remote means. There shall be no audio or visual recording of an executive 
session. 
 

(f) Remote means account. The Town’s accounts must be used for purposes of all remote 
meetings and hybrid meetings conducted by the Planning Board. The use of private 
accounts to host a remote meeting is prohibited. 

 
 
Section 5. Compliance with Policy. 

 
This Policy is intended to be self-enforcing and is an expression of the standards of 

conduct for Planning Board members expected by the Town. It therefore becomes most 
effective when Board members are thoroughly familiar with it and embrace its provisions. The 
Planning Board does not waive the right to address any violations in the manner it deems 
appropriate under the specific circumstances.



 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES                                                                                                                                                        
TOWN of DAMARISCOTTA                                                                                                                      
November 7, 2022   6:00 P.M.   

Live and via Zoom 

                                                                                                                                                                     
MEMBERS:  Jonathan Eaton, Chairperson; Jenny Begin, Neil Genthner, Wilder Hunt and Ann Jackson     
ALTERNATES:  Gary Rosenthal, and Dan Day                                                                                                       
ABSENTEES: None                                                                                                                                                                                     
STAFF PRESENT:  Isabelle Oechslie, Town Planner; Lynda Letteney, Recording Secretary                                                                                                                                                                                            
PUBLIC PRESENT:  Andrew Johnston, Atlantic Resource Consultants; Daniel Maguire, Sandy River 
Company; Bill Bray, Barton & Loguidice; Rebecca Dillon, Gawron Turgeon Architects; Brooke Sharp; 
Sandy Day; Randall Peterson; Jennifer Fox; Hylie West, Lincoln County Rifle Club; Claire Sommer; 
Geoff Keochakian;  Evan Houk, Lincoln County News 

I. CALL TO ORDER                                                                                                                                   
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairperson Eaton.    

II. Pledge of Allegiance                                                                                                                          
Chairperson Eaton led the Pledge at 6:00 p.m.                                                                                                             

III. MINUTES                                                                                                                                                                     
On motion (Genthner/Begin) to approve the minutes from September 19, 2022 as presented                 
           Vote:  5-0-0  
On motion (Genthner/Begin) to approve the minutes from October 3, 2022 as presented                      
           Vote:  5-0-0  

Chairperson Jonathan Eaton opened the Public Hearings at 6:04 p.m. by asking for public comments.                                                                                                                                                                   

                                                                          
IV.   PUBLIC HEARINGS                                                                                                                                              

A.  Public Hearing #1:  Reapproval:  Site Plan and Conditional Use Application for Damariscotta 
Solar 1, LLC for a 4.95 MW PV Solar Array on the easterly side of US Rt. 1 adjacent to the 
Nobleboro Town Line (Tax Map 3 Lot 64-5 and Tax Map 3, Lot 62).  Isabelle Oechslie, Town 
Planner, told the Board that this was essentially an extension of the plan approved last year, with no 
changes to the previously approved plan. Hearing no comments, hearing was closed 6:06 p.m.                                                              
On motion (Genthner/Jackson) to approve the approval extension for one year with the conditions 
as drafted by the Town Planner.  Vote:  5-0-0  

B.  Public Hearing #2:  Miscellaneous updates to the Land Use, Site Plan Review, and Subdivision 
Ordinances to correct existing typographical errors, to define previously undefined terms, to make 
the Ordinances more user-friendly, and to update references to administration of the development 
review process.  Isabelle told the public that these changes had been “workshopped” by the Board during 
their meeting on September 19, 2022. These are intended to be non-substantive changes to correct 
existing typos, to provide definitions for previously undefined terms, and to make the Ordinance more 



 

user-friendly by alphabetizing the land use table. Also proposed are updated references to the 
administration of the development review process (to define the Town Planner’s role in the process versus 
that of the Code Enforcement Officer). If these current changes are approved, a Special Town Meeting 
will be scheduled for a vote on the amendments.  Geoff Keochakian, resident of School Street, asked if 
any of the proposed changes are specific to future projects. Isabelle replied that the changes will apply to 
all upcoming projects but are not specific to any one project. They are intended to be non-substantive.  All 
ordinances are available online and show the red line changes.  Hearing no other comments, Chairperson 
Eaton closed the public hearing on this item at 6:12 p.m.                                               

On motion (Hunt/Jackson) to adopt the red line changes to the cited ordinances as presented.    
          Vote:  5-0-0  
Chairperson Eaton called the third Public Hearing to order at 6:15 p.m.                 

C.  Public Hearing #3:  Minor subdivision Amendment Application for Clippership Landing 
Development, LLC to subdivide the existing property at 2 Piper Mill Road (Tax Map 1, Lot 50).  
Isabelle presented her recommendation regarding this item, which is to approve the application with the 
findings of fact and conditions of approval as presented in the meeting packet. There was a question from 
Board members regarding the proposed stormwater filtration areas and if an easement would be needed 
for the one located on both properties.                                                      

Chairperson Eaton asked Andy Johnston to come up and address these questions.  Mr. Johnston, 
Atlantic Resource Consultants, stated that there would be easements required. Neil Genthner asked if 
there was a stormwater management maintenance plan.  Mr. Johnston said it was provided with the 
application.  The design is such as it mimics the natural drainage pattern of the area with shallow 
depressions with natural vegetation. Jenny Begin asked if there was a requirement for more than one 
entrance.  Isabelle responded that policy is to limit curb cuts, but that the Ordinance allows for up to two.                                                                                                                   

Mr. West, from the Lincoln County Rifle Club, said this property is adjacent to the club.  They are 
requesting a maximum buffer to avoid conflict over noise before it even arises.  There is regular shooting 
going on and the Club and he feels it is in everyone’s best interest to minimize noise and disruption. He 
presented a letter to the Planning for the record as to the Club’s position on both the subdivision and the 
building (which they are in favor of, with buffering).  Jennifer Fox, 56 High Street, asked if there would 
be sidewalks in front of the property.  She asked about “the sidewalk to nowhere” and Chairperson 
Eaton responded that those were important questions, but did not pertain to the subdivision.  She would 
need to address those during the Public Hearing on the Site Plan application itself. 

asked Isabelle if there would be a sidewalk across the entire property.  Isabelle said the Town Planner 
makes recommendations to the Planning Board and they decide, but that her recommendation (included in 
conditions of approval) would be for a sidewalk to be located across the entire frontage of the subject 
parcel (from the intersection of School and Piper Mill Road). Hearing no other public comments, the 
Public Hearing was closed at 6:30 p.m. 

Board Discussion of Minor Subdivision Amendment:  Jenny asked if the applicants are planning to retain 
ownership of proposed Lot 2.  Daniel Maguire, Sandy River Company, said the plan was to use it later – 
for associated senior housing units, recreational areas, trails, etc. and related services. Jenny said she 
wanted to talk about buffers, but realized that is in the Site Plan application, and she will hold her 



 

comments until that is discussed.  Neil Genthner said there is a vacant lot behind this which is a wooded 
land, at least until it is used.  Jonathan Eaton commented that woods is one of the best sound barriers, 
especially pine trees.  

 Jonathan Eaton again asked if there were any more comments.  Randall Peterson asked about the 
developer’s track record for disruption of habitat.  How well do they do at restoring landscape-are there 
samples of previous projects?  Isabelle responded that she thought he was referring to the landscaping 
plan, and that was not part of the subdivision issue. Jennifer Fox said most of the area is wetland and not 
developed.  Why utilities if it is not being developed?  Andy Johnston said the eastern side of the lot had 
to have a buffer between the wetland areas and any future development.  Wilder Hunt commented that 
this is a large tract of land and it meets all the requirements for subdivision.  Jenny Begin asked if it 
would be better to take action on the Subdivision application after the Site Plan application is also 
discussed and moved on.  Jonathan reiterated that the division was needed before proceeding with the 
development.                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
On motion (Hunt/Begin) to approve the Minor Subdivision application of Clippership Landing 
Development, dated through October 19, 2022, and associated plans and drawings, stamped and 
dated August 2022 by Horizon Engineering, for the Clippership  Subdivision on Piper Mill Road 
with the attached conditions #1-#11:             Vote:  4-0-1 
(Genthner abstaining)                                                                                                                                     

Chairperson Eaton closed the third Public Hearing at 7:00 p.m. and immediately opened Public Hearing 
#4.  

D.  Public Hearing #4:  Site Plan and Conditional Use Application for Clippership Landing 
Development, LLC to construct a 102-bed nursing care facility and associated site improvements 
(including parking areas, two curb cuts, storm water management facilities, and courtyard and 
path systems for facility residents) at 2 Piper Mill Road (Tax Map 1, Lot 50).                                       

Town Planner, Isabelle Oechslie, provided summary of the application as well as “unique issues” that 
have been identified as important considerations for the Planning Board or are responses to questions 
raised by the public. These issues include: 1.) Traffic – trips in and out of the facility are anticipated at 
about 20 in the am and 34 in the pm; 2.) Parking – 34 spaces required, 103 spaces provided; 3.) Lighting 
– safety first; meets all local ordinances; 4.)  Storm water- standards met; 5.) Natural resources – the 
applicants are required to obtain a Tier I permit from Maine DEP as well as the Army Corps of Engineers 
authorization (Isabelle is recommending a condition of approval); and 6.) Drip line fencing around trees 
designated for preservation, to protect them during construction.  

Isabelle went on to discuss the requested waivers.                                                                                                 
1.  Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.7(D) to provide sidewalks within the 
parking areas that are 6’ in width, rather than 8’ width required as part of this section and to not raise the 
sidewalks to 6 inched above the travel way.                                                                                                                            
2.  Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.7 (H) (3), which requires the applicants to 
submit an economic and fiscal impact analysis for the proposed large-scale development.                                         
3.  Waiver pursuant to Site Plan Review Ordinance Section 102.6 (B) (2)(b) with respect to eastern 
property line only.  This section requires the applicant to provide a 30-foot minimum buffer strip between 
the proposed, new property line and the paved access drive. 



 

Isabelle said that, noting material for Waiver regarding 102.7 (H) (3) is outstanding, the Board could vote 
to approve the Site Plan Review application so long as the applicants are prepared to satisfy the Board 
verbally with the information.  Jenny Begin suggested that the Board hear Daniel Maguire’s presentation 
before any discussion/decisions.  Daniel Maguire began by saying his entire team was present and could 
speak to any questions the Board has.  First of all, this project is not a new building in competition with 
Cove’s Edge; it is a replacement for that facility and the St. Andrew’s facility in Boothbay. The project 
will also need to be evaluated through the Certificate of Need process through the State. Local approval is 
typically the first step before anything else can happen.  Project involves three “neighborhoods” of 34 or 
so rooms – skilled nursing, long term care, and memory care.  They have been in the nursing care facility 
business since 1983-84 developing projects across Maine, with one in Rockland currently under 
construction. They also have a 94 bed unit in Sanford and a 102 bed facility in Portland.  All rooms are 
single occupancy to enhance resident's privacy and preserve their dignity.  This facility will be 100% 
private rooms.  Jenny Begin asked how many beds were designated at Medicare recipients.  Mr. Maguire 
said all beds are Medicare/Maine Care eligible.                                                                                                                                                                            

Andy Johnston spoke to the proposed building placement, stating that the goal is to maintain as much of 
the natural landscape as possible and to retain as much woodland as possible.  Plan minimizes impact on 
neighboring properties and leaves the main entrance facing south (to help with ice and snow clearance).  
Entrance will maximize existing vegetation with complementary plantings.  Parking spaces far exceed 
required amount because of noted demand from applicant’s other facilities.  The nature of the facility, not 
commercial in-and- out retail, has overlapping staff shifts as well as increased visitors during holidays, 
etc.  Commercial deliveries for the maintenance of the facility (food, cleaning, etc.) are intermittent on a 
daily basis.  Utilities are off Piper Road and will have fiber optic internet, water, electric supply, and 
sewer. Storm water runoff has been designed to be low impact.  Buffering is shown on the landscape plan.  
Many trees have been left in place, and new trees are slated to be planted with a healthy growth start (5’-
8’).  This will help minimize pollution from noise, lighting, and provide visual blockage.  Lighting 
proposed meets the ordinance requirements for color temperature. Waiver #2 asks the developers to 
provide an economic and fiscal impact study. The applicants noted that much of the study has been 
presented either in the Board packets or verbally by the developers.  The buffer strip between the two 
properties is not an issue as both parcels have the same owner and both are potentially offering related 
services.  Andy asked Bill Bray, applicant’s traffic consultant, to come up and talk about the traffic 
associated with the proposal.   

Jonathan Eaton opened the hearing to the public on Item #4. 

First speaker was Hylie West from the Rifle Club (abutting property to project).  They want to be good 
neighbors, but want the developers to understand that the range is used daily, and it can get quite noisy.  
He hopes a lot of natural buffer can be used to block the noise.                                                                                                                                

Second speaker was Brook Sharp from Bristol Road.  She identified herself as “the woman who lives 
next to the hospital’s new parking lot.”  She commented that “this same outfit” (the hospital 
administration) promised her many things to get approval and have not followed through on the fixes now 
that they have their parking lot.  Issues with hospital currently include:                                                                                                              
1) dead trees not removed;                                                                                                                                              



 

2) downed signage not fixed;                                                                                                                                                    
3) weeds;  
4) cars in non-marked areas including on the grass;                                                                                                                                                          
5) lighting. 
She cautions the Board to review these items in terms of the proposal before them. 
          
The third speaker was Sandy Day, a School St. resident.  She began by saying that she was sad Cove’s 
Edge was closing.  She said this is a very large project and feels the impact on High St. and Piper Mill Rd 
and the intersection of School St. and Rt. 1 has been under estimated.  She is also concerned about noise 
from the rifle range.  

The fourth Speaker was Jennifer Fox who is an abutter, but did not get the original letter as they 
purchased the property in 2021.  She was concerned about the intersection of School St. and High St., 
especially with the ambulance service located on Piper Mill Rd. She asked when the public gets to review 
the final studies.  Also what is planned for School St./Bristol Road?  A 25 mph sign sounds good, but who 
enforces it?                                                        

Bill Bray attempted to answer her questions by reviewing his provided memo related to traffic counts, 
sight distances, and access. He also noted that MDOT has indicated that funding is available for a short-
term fix for the School Street and Main Street intersection.  The short-term fix approved by the Town 
Selectboard includes line of pylons which would not allow for left turns from Main to School St.  

Jenny Begin said she would like an accident report for the intersection of School St and Bristol Rd. 
Jenny Begin commented that with 140 employees and 3 shifts, timing of the shifts might help traffic 
flow.  Dan Maguire asked if there was anything else the Planning Board needed. Jenny asked if any 
electric vehicle charging stations or any solar panels were planned.  Dan said not at this time.  

Jenny Begin said she hadn’t seen the visuals, what does it look like from School St./Piper Mill Rd.?  
Jenny would like to see a conceptual view from School St. including the buffering planned.  She wanted 
to be reassured that big trees would remain. Jenny wanted to make sure energy efficiency was 
incorporated.  Rebecca Dillon said plan exceeds Maine’s energy code.  Roof top solar is under 
consideration.  Jenny asked about how the building will be heated and Rebecca said it was still being 
discussed.  Whatever is decided upon will meet new State energy codes. Isabelle asked Dan Maguire to 
read their economic impact analysis response into the record. 

Dan Maguire read his memo to the Board, which was dated 11/4/2022 and was in response to the waiver 
to not provide an economic and fiscal impact analysis as required by Sec. 102.7(H)(3). In lieu of this 
requirement, they offered the following information: 1) market feasibility is typically reviewed through 
the State’s (DHHS) Certificate of Need process “That review includes the financial feasibility of the 
project as well as the need for the services. The need analysis with DHHS is straightforward; we are 
closing two programs and relocating those licensed nursing care beds and programs to a new state-of-the-
art nursing care center. Regarding financial feasibility, DHHS will go through a detailed financial analysis 
in their review and approval of this project. Without DHHS approval, this project would not go forward;” 
2) construction job creation: construction is anticipated to take approximately 18 months and is currently 
estimate at approximately $29,000,000 and will result in both on-site and off-site construction jobs; 3) 
jobs created in new facility: 10-12 senior management and an additional 130 full- and part-time support 



 

and care staff. Employees of existing Lincoln Health facilities will be offered jobs at the new facility; 4) 
real estate taxes: the project will be a taxable project with an anticipated revenue to the Town in the 
$200,000 range annually; 5) value of improvements: nursing care facility will allow the public to continue 
to live in this area while they age and a new sidewalk on Piper Mill Road. 

Jennifer Fox asked about traffic impact during the 18 months of construction.  Jonathan said that is not 
usually figured in as it is temporary but asked Bill Bray how traffic is handled during this period.  Bill 
responded that they generally make assumptions and recommendations.  Factors include volume of 
traffic, times of day, contractor input considered.  i.e.  “We can prohibit use of some intersections at 
certain times of day or for certain periods during construction.”  Time of day restriction could be 
imposed.  Bill Bray said at some sites, they bus workers in from offsite parking. Jonathan also 
commented on the Waiver for 102.7 saying that the memo from Mr. Maguire was pretty good in its detail.  
Dan Maguire stated that a third-party economic analysis is virtually impossible to get in a timely fashion.  
Consultants for this work just aren’t available.  Jonathan said that this project doesn’t take business away 
from others as it is a combination of two existing facilities into one.  Housing is not an issue; feasibility 
study is unnecessary in his opinion. 

At 9:00 p.m. Jonathan stopped the hearing due to the Planning Board By-Law provision to not take up 
new business past 9:00PM. The Planning Board tasked the applicants with providing the following items: 
1) Information on the sight distances from Piper Mill Road onto School Street; 2) Provide information on 
the accidents at School Street and Bristol Road intersection; 3) Provide visual renderings of how the 
proposed building will look from School Street, from Piper Mill Road, and from surrounding properties 
(including the proposed landscaping). 

On motion (Begin/Jackson) to table this item until the next scheduled meeting on December 5, 2022. 
        Vote:  4-0-1 (Genthner abstaining) 
     

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Lynda Letteney                                                                                                                                                    
Recording Secretary 

 

We the undersigned approve the minutes for the Planning Board Meeting of November 7, 2022. 

 

_________________________________________________                                                           
Jonathan Eaton, Chairperson 

 

__________________________________________________                                                                        
Jenny Begin 



 

 

________________________________________________                                                                                  
Neil Genthner 

 

___ ____________________________________________                                                                              
Wilder Hunt 

 

________________________________________________                                                                        
Ann Jackson 

 

________ _______________________________________                                                                                              
Daniel Day (alternate) 

 

_______________________________________________                                                                                                             
Gary Rosenthal (alternate)                                                                         

 

Minutes for November 7, 2022, signed ________________________________                                                    
       Date 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 


	PB_Packet_12.19.2022.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022.pdf
	PB_Agenda_2022_1219.pdf



	Packet Table of Contents.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022.pdf
	MEMO_Above & Beyond_PID #2204.pdf
	Introduction
	Submission Chronology
	Project Data
	Review Process
	COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Analysis of Project
	Waivers
	Recommendation
	Conditions of Approval

	Attachments:

	FINDINGS_Above & Beyond_PID #2204.pdf

	doc02372220221212154209.pdf



	Lighting.pdf
	PB_Packet_12.19.2022
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022.pdf
	doc02372320221212154230.pdf
	Response to completeness questions_12.05.2022.pdf

	Site Plans.pdf
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022
	PB_Draft Packet_12.19.2022
	Draft Remote and Hybrid Meeting Policy.pdf
	Town of Damariscotta
	Remote and Hybrid Meeting Policy
	Section 2. Definitions.
	Section 3. Use of Remote Means for Public Meetings.
	Section 5. Compliance with Policy.

	PB_Minutes_11.07.2022.pdf







